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FIRST BELL
Meanwhile, in further efforts to get a quick start on fires,

the new Tucson firefighters ordered a bell at a cost of $462.

The 1,447-pound bell was being shipped from Boston with a freight

bill of $75.

The placing of the three-quarter ton clanger became a
controversy.

Early in November, it was announced that the bell would
be set in a tower to be erected at Church Plaza. During a
council meeting that month, bids of about $1,000 (not including
the stone foundation) were entered for the construction of the
tower. One member opposed the tower, calling it an ''unnecessary
expense'. Others suggested the 16-foot square room in the tower
could be rented for $35 a month to gain revenue to pay for the
structure. Anothercouncilman said it could be used by the
Marshal's office.

One councilman suggested saving money by putting the bell
atop the county courthouse. The mayor did not want his bell
on a county building. Finally, the $1,044 bid was accepted
specifying the Church Plaza tower be finished in 30 days. One
concerned citizen offered to rent the tower room for $25 monthly
on a five-year lease.

The firemen were not alone in their stormy, argumentative

meetings. Such emotion-packed scenes were a part of the times.
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The same week the coucil was debating the bell tower, a
fire broke out in the Palace Hotel o0il room. It was ''quickly
extinguished" by the fire company using its Babcock extinguishers,
according to the news reports.

The fire bell was in place late in 1881, but the controversy
continued.

A newspaper story said the bell was too well enclosed.

The story asked, "Why would it not be a first class idea to
wrap the clapper up to prevent wear and tear?'" The editors,
in the sarcastic tone, showed they were afraid the bell could
not be heard all over town.

The bell was moved in 1882 when the fire department and
city hall moved from the old town hall area. The bell stayed
at that new fire station on Church Street until 1909.

With the bell firmly in place, the Tucson Fire Department
was to see many changes in 1882.

AWAKEN THE OPERATORS

In January of that year, the Arizona Telephone Company
received permission to locate a central office in the second
story room of the bell tower.

The fire alarm boxes terminated at that telephone office.
The idea was that with such termination facilities the bell
could be hit faster upon receiving an incoming signal.

The idea seemed great except for one catch.

The teen-age boys hired as telephone operators often dozed.

On occasion, passersby were seen tossing pebbles at the
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WHAT THE BISHOP LEARNED

The Importance of Claiming Space at

Tucson’s Church Plaza

by

Abigail A. Van Slyck

I\ 1893, PEDRO CHAROULEAU PETITIONED the Tucson city council
Ato dig a cesspool behind his property on Congress Street. A
seemingly innocuous event, Charouleau’s request prompted the
city to intervene in the use and appearance of Tucson’s Church
Plaza, and highlighted the ongoing rivalry between church and
town over control of urban space (Fig. 1). Urban renewal in the
1960s obliterated all signs of the plaza, and today the site is little
more than an overblown downtown traffic median, a green swath
between Congress and Broadway, west of Church Street and
directly south of the Pima County Superior Courts building. Yet
its story provides rare insight into city-making and the interplay of
religion, politics, and economics in nineteenth-century Tucson.
Photographs from the 1870s display the earliest visual evi-
dence of the Church Plaza. They show an urban space that is
almost ubiquitous in towns with Hispanic roots (Fig. 2). A dusty,
unadorned area defined on three sides by an unbroken row of
one-story, flat-roofed adobe buildings, with a simple adobe
church dominating its eastern edge—the plaza had many of the
urban elements that we have come to associate with the tradition
of Hispanic city planning codified in the 1573 Laws of the Indies.!
Tucson’s Church Plaza is not so easily categorized, however.
Despite physical similarities with Spanish colonial plazas, this

Abigail Van Slyck, associate professor of architecture at the University of Arizona, is
the author of Free to AU: ( arnegie Libraries &7 American Cuwlture, 1890-1920 (Univer-
sity of Chicago Press, 1995). She would like to thank Dan Brosnan of the Diocese
of Tucson Research Center and Sister Alberta Cammack of St. Marv's Hospital for
research assistance. Harris Sobin, Tom Sheridan, and the late Bob Giebner pro
vided thoughtful comments on an earlier draft of this article
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What the Bishop Learned

urban space resulted from a very different experience of city-

making. Under Spanish rule, the Laws of the Indies had specified

the plaza as the starting place for town planning, and had

reserved sites on the plaza for both sacred and secular institu
tions. In this way, colonial-era plazas reiterated the institutional
links between church and crown, and reinforced their mutually
supportive roles in Spain’s colonizing enterprise. In contrast,
[ucson’s Church Plaza—Ilike many plazas in the southwestern
United States—was a product ol the American era; it was estab-
lished seventy-five vears after the settlement’s founding and
developed independently of Spain’s legislative guidelines. What
began in the 1850s as a means of reinforcing a sense ol commu
nity among Tucson’s Mexican residents became a place where
French church officials and Anglo municipal authorities con-
fronted one another as rivals, vying for control over urban space,
Bv the end of the nineteenth century, this institutional rivalry was
rendered moot by economic forces that transformed almost

every aspect of Tuc son’s community life.=

Fig. 2. View of the Plaza
de la Mesilla, looking
easlt, cC. /\‘/—f', /H []"

upper left corner, San

Agustin Cathedral and
the convent school H/ the
Susters of St /I‘\l/ll( jac
the /'7//:".//, ('r'.’//lA/I Street
(later called Broadway)
runs from the foreground
to the upper right corner.
(AHS/SAD #13927)
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['he first map of Tucson was drawn in 1862 to help reconcile
property rights left in dispute when Mexican officials evacuated
Tucson following the Gadsden Purchase of 1854, taking thein
records with them (Fig. 3). Named for Maj. David Fergusson. the
American military commander who enforced martial law in Tuc-
son, the Fergusson map shows a settlement that bears little
resemblance to Spanish colonial models of city planning. In fact,
clear distinctions between settlement types often existed only in
theory, becoming blurred in practice in Tucson and elsewhere on
the distant frontiers of New Spain.

A\lthough officially established as a presidio in 1775, Tucson
had both military and civilian inhabitants by an early date. A cen
sus taken in 1831 reveals that this pattern continued in the
Mexican era, with a total population of 465 comprised of fifty-
seven civilian households and ninetv-three military ones.
Combining the qualities of a presidio and a pueblo, Tucson
resembled neither. By 1862, the controlled planning of Tucson’s
original presidial core had been eroded. The Calle de la Guardia

bisected the presidio into two irregular rectangles of open space,
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